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201157 32,689,395,308 54,861,104,388 32,214,013,121
5015 12 31 (32,689,395,308) (54,861,104,388) (32,214,013,121)
201168 38,118,395,809 28,560,924 ,634 41,771,484,296
2016 12 31 (38,118,395,809) (28,560,924,634) (41,771,484,296)
201179 21,101,112,501 14,984,981,565 47,887,615,232
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201280 23,247,506,828 25,651,021,320 45,484,100,740
2018 12 31 (23,247,506, 828) (25,651,021,320) (45,484,100,740)
o0t 53,933,160, 762 60,039,359, 163 39,377,902, 359
5019 12 31 (53,933,160,782) (60,039,359,163) (39,377,902,359)
.202202 62,722,273,816 64,236,285,081 37,863,891,094
2020 12 31 (62,722,273,816) (64,236,285,081) (37,863,891,094)
202213 39,082,772,311 42,399,220, 392 34,547,443,013
2021 12 31 (39,082,772,311) (42,399,220,392) (34,547,443,013)
202224 125,857,053,947 106,444,378,445 53,960,118,515
2022 12 31 (125,857,053,947) (106,444,378,445) (53,960,118,515)
202235 258,230,124,815 207,270,425,456 104,919,817,874
5023 12 31 (258,230,124,815) (207,270,425,456) (104,919,817,874)
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2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
©) 1,045,320,103 164,010,724 538,023,568 84,415,898
(b) 4,843,834 759,998 1,810,350 284,044
- - 246,800 38,723
43,281 6,791 - -
1,050,207,218 164,777,513 540,080,718 84,738,665
10 423,237 66,406 109,723 17,216
173,818 27,272 83,574 13,113
7,676 1,204 7,742 1,215
6,780 1,064 6,782 1,064
220,964 34,669 113,417 17,795
54,301 8,520 25,071 3,934
88,793 13,932 69,502 10,905
- - 29,446 4,620
33,470 5,251 34,276 5,378
1,009,039 158,318 479,533 75,239
1,049,198,179 164,619,194 539,601,185 84,663,426
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2023 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
® 45,369,059 7,118,405 7,223,820 1,133,417
45,369,059 7,118,405 7,223,820 1,133,417
1,763,173 276,642 793,637 124,522
30,369 4,765 30,405 4,771
19,998 3,138 19,998 3,138
2,203,943 345,799 832,634 130,640
176,301 27,662 79,364 12,452
208,739 32,751 150,888 23,674
40,408 6,340 69,310 10,875
156,498 24,555 94,943 14,897
4,599,429 721,650 2,071,179 324,968
_ - (282,773) (44,367)
4,599,429 721,650 1,788,406 280,601
40,769,630 6,396,755 5,435,414 852,816
10 (40,769,630) (6,396,755) (5,435,414) (852,816)
(40,769,630) (6,396,755) (5,435,414) (852,816)
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539,601,185 84,663,426 345,474,430 54,204,938
2,582,301,248 405,163,066 1,258,570,539 197,469,718
(2,072,704,254) (325,207,297)  (1,064,443,784) (167,011, 230)
1,049,198,179 164,619,194 539,601,185 84,663,426
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1,049,198,179 0.01 539,601,185 0.01
2021 12 31
345,474,430 0.01

96/230




EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )

Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
40,769,630 5,435,414
11
(a
(
(

97/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

60

98/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(Y
2023 12 31
1.57 2022 12 31 0.95
10
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
37.28 43.11
32.85 24.59
17.28 13.54
12.59 18.76
100.00 100.00

2023 12 31 2022 12 31

99/230



(c

2023 12 31

2023 12 31

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 12 31

2022 12 31

100/230



EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1,045,320,103 538,023,568
4,843,834 1,810,350
- 246,800
30,257 -
1,050,194,194 540,080,718
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
99.63 99.71
«
(
2019/2088
12
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
13
102

101/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

14

28

15
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

16
2022 12 30

17
2023 12 31 2022 12 31

18
2023
2023 24
2023 13
2023 18
2023 12 31

19
2023 12 31

20

21
2024 16

102/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 31
@
1,045,320,103 5.40 1,045,320,103 99.63
™ ©d)(e)
1,045,320,103 99.63
1,045,320,103 99.63
1,045,320,103 99.63
3,878,076 0.37
1,049,198,179 100.00
©) 2023 12 31
®
©
') 99.63
®

103/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust {Ireland)
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
MNotes Uss uss
Current Assels
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3c) B 1045320103 538,023,568
Income receivable (k) 4 843834 1,810,350
Investment Adviser/Distributor fees waived and
expanse reimbursements receivable T - 246,800
Other assets 43,281 =
Total Current Assets 1,050,207,218 540,080,718
Current Liabilites
Distribution payable 10 423,297 109,723
Investment Adviser fees payable 7 173,818 83,574
Administration fees payable 7 7.B78 7,742
Depositary fees payable 7 5780 6,782
Distributor fees payable [ 220,964 113.417
Agent Compary fees payable v 54,30 25,07
Transfer Agent fees payable 7 88,793 69,502
Professional fees payable - 29,445
Other liabilities 33,470 34,275
Total Current Liabilities (Excluding Net Assets
Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units) 1,009,039 479,533
Mot Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units 89 1,049,198,179 530,601,185

On Behalf of Board of Directors of the Manager

i |':._.!:
=

Director
{ el

[, Y

Chrechor

Date: 16 April 2024

The accornpanying notes formn an integral part of the financial statements.

n
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund

A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
MNotes Uss Uss
Income
Dividend and Interest Income 3k} 45,360,050 7,223,820
Met Investment Income 45,369,059 7,223,820
Expenses
Investment Adviser fees T 1,763,173 793,637
Administration fess 7 20,369 30,405
Depositary fees T 19 998 19,998
Distibutor fees T 2,203,943 832,634
Agent Company fees T 176,301 79,364
Transfer Agency fees 7 208,739 150,888
Professional fees 40,408 68,310
Other expenses 156,498 04 0943
Total Expenses 4,509,420 2071179
Investment Adwviser/Distmbutor fees waved and
expanses reimbursed 7 = (282 773)
Total Operating Expenses 4,509 429 1,788,406
Operating profit 40,769,630 5435414
Finance Costs
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating units 10 {40,769 630 15,435,414}
Total Finance Costs {40,768,630) (5,435,414)

Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units from Operations

Gains and losses arose solely from confinuing investment activities. There were no gains or losses other than

those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

12
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund

A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders

of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

Met assets attributable to holders of
radeemable participating units at Start of Year

Proceeds from redeemable paricpating units issued
Payments for redeemable participating units redeemed

Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at End of Year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

12

31 December 31 Decembaer

2023 2022

Notes uss uss
530,601,185 345 474,430

a8 2 B5R2 301 248 1,258 570,538

8 (2,072.704,254) (1,084,443, 784)
1,049,198,179 539,601,185
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

(a)

Organisation

Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland) (the “Trust’) iz a Unit Trust established as an umbrella fund. The Central
Bank of Ireland authorised the Tiust under the Eurcpean Communities (Undertakings for Collective
[nvestment in Transferable Seeurites) Requlations, 2011 as amended (the "UCITS Ragulatians’).

The Trust has appointed Gaoldman Sachs Asset Management Fund Services Limited ("GSAMFSL) to be its
Manager. Refer to the Significant Agreements and Related Parties note for the functions the Manager
undertakes and delegates,

The Trust has appointed The Bank of Mew York Mellon SANY, Dublin Branch (the “Depositary™) to act as the
depositary of the Trust pursuant to the Trust Deed.

As at 31 December 2023 the Trust had one sub-fund, the Goldman Sachs USE Fund (the "Fund”), which
invests, all or substantially all, of its assets in a Master Sub-Furd as detailed in the following table:

Fund Currency | Master Sub-Fund Launch Date of Fund
Goldman Sachs USS Fund (the | USD Goldman Sachs USS 20-April-1999
“Fund”) Treasury Liquid Reserves

Fund - X Distribution Class

The Master Sub-Fund is a sub-fund of Goldman Sachs Funds, ple an open-ended investment company with
limited liahility, incorporated under the laws of Ireland and authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland as a
UCITS. The Annual Repart and Asdited Financial Statements of the Master Sub-Fund can be obtained from
the Administrator.

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Fund is a high level of total retwrn consisting of income and capital
appredation, To achieve this objective, all, or substantially all, of the proceeds of each clase of Units in the
Fund will be invested in the Class "X Distibution” share class of the Master Sub-Fund.

Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Trust has applied Financial Reporting Standards 102 ("FRS 102%) "The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”.

The presentation for the comparative period of the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of
Financial Position has been amended in line with 31 December 2023 classification for the Professional
fees/ Professional fees payable and Other expenses/Oher liabilities.

The Financial Statements are presented in United States Dollars, the Trust's functional currency. The
Directors of the Manager consider that this currency most accurately represents the economic effects of the
undeslying transactions, events and conditions of the Trust.

The preparation of the finandal statements is in accordance with FRS 102, ish Statute comprising the Unit
Trust Act 1990 and in accordance with the UCITS regulations. The financial statements have been prapared
on a going concern basis, as the Directors of the Manager are of the view that the Trust can contnue In
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Directors of the Manager to make certain estimates
and assumplions that may affect the amounts repoeted in the financial statements and accompanying notes.

Refer to the Liabilites section of the Statement of Finandal Posiion and Mote 4 for instances where the
Directors of the Manager were required o make certain estimates and assumptions to determine fair value.

14
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

(a)

(B}

(e)

Accounting Pelicies (continued)
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)

Actual results may differ from those estmates. Accounting Standards applied in preparing financial
staternents giving a true and fair view are those published by the Insttute of Chartered Accountant in Ireland
and issued by the Financial Reporting Council,

The fnancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convenbon as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilites held at fair value through profit or loss.

The format and certain wording of the financial statements has been adapted from those contained in FRS
102, Section 3 “Finandal Statement Presentaion” so that in the opinion of the Manager, they mare
appropriately reflect the nature of the Trusts business as an investment trust. In the opinion of the Manager,
the financial statements with the noted changes provide the inferrmation required by the Unit Trust Act 1990

Investment Transactions and Related Investment Income and Operating Expenses

Investment transactons are recorded on a trade date basis. Realised gains and losses are based on the
Weighted Average CostMethod.

Dividend income and dividend expense are recorded on the ex-dividend date and interest income and interest
gupense are acciued over the life of the investment Interest income includes accrefion of market discount,
criginal issue discounts and amaortisation of premiums and is recorded into income aver the life of the underlying
investment Interestincome and dividend income are recognised on a gross basis before withhelding tau if any.

Operating expenses are recognised on an accruals basis.
Transaction costs, when incurred, are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial Investment in Securities and Valuation

Under FRS 102, in accounting for all of its financial instruments, an entity is required to apply either {a} the full
requirements of Sections 11 “Basic Finandal Instruments” and Section 12 “Other Finanaal Instuments lssuss”
of FRS 102, {b) the recogniion and measurement provisions of Internaional Accounting Standards ("1AS7) 39
‘Financial Instuments: Recognition and Measurement” (*IAS 387) as adopted for use in the Eurcpean Union
and the disclosure requirements of Sections 11 and 12, or (¢) the recognition and measurement provisions of
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS") % “Financial Instruments™ (*IFRS &7) and the disclosure
requirements of Sections 11 and 12. The Trust has elected to apply the recogniion and measurement
pravisions of IAS 3% and the disclosure requirements of Sections 11 and 12,

i. Classification

A financial asset or financial liabdity at fair value threugh profit o loss is a finandal asset or labiity that is
classified as held-for-rading or designated at far value through profit or loss. The following financial
investments are classified as held-for-rading: Collective Investrment Schemes.

Financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or loss include accounts receivable,

Financial iabiifes that are not at fair value through profit or loss indude accounts payable and financial
liabilities arising on Redeemable Units.

ii. Recognition and Derecognition

The Trust recagnizes financial assets and financial Babilites on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provigions of the investment, Purchases and sales of financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
using trade date accounting. From trade date, any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabiliies are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Incoms,

15
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

(c)

(d)

Accounting Pelicies (continued)
Financial Investment in Securities and Valuation (continuad)

it. Recognition and Darecognition (confinued)
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash fows from the investments have expired
or the Trust has transferred substantially all nisks and rewards of ownership.

i, Fair Valus Measurement Principles

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are valued in accordance with 1AS 39,
Financial assets and financial liabiliies are inifally recerded at their ransaction price and then measured at fair
value subsequent 1o initial recogniion, Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
assets of financial liakilites at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the Statement of
Camprehensive Income in the period in which they arize,

Financial assets classified as receivables are carned at cost less impairment losses, if any. Financial liabilites,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at cost. Financial liabilities arising from
redeemable units issued by the Trust are camed at the redemphion amount representing the investors’ nght to a
residual amount of the Trust's Net Assets Atvibutable o Holders of Redeemable Participating Units {"Net
Assets).

The fair value of all securities and derivatives is determined according to the following policies:

{4i 1) Shares in Collective Investmen! Schemes

The fair value of investments in cpen-ended collective investment schemes, including UCITS collective
investrment schemes, is based upon the net ascet value per share as supplied by the Master Sub-Fund, in
accordance with the valuation policy of the Master Sub-Fund as outlined in its prospectus.

(i 20 Al Securities

If a quoted market price iz not available from a third party pricing service or a dealer, or a quotation is
believed to be materially inaccurate, the fair value of the nvestment is determined by using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include the use of recent market ransactions, reference to the current fair
value of another investment that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow analyses or any other
techniques that provides a reliable estimate of prices obtained in actual market ransactions. Such securities
ﬁaﬂ b; valued at their probable realisation value as determined by a Valuer, Please refer to Mote 4 for

rther details.

The investrents have been valued in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles that require
the use of certain estimates and assumplions to determine fair value. Although these estimates and
assumplions are based on the best available information, actual results could be materially different from
these estimates.

Refer to Note 4 for securiies where the Valuer was used to determine fair value.

Cash

Cash is valued at cost, which approximates fair value.

16
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

3. Accounting Policies (continued)
(e) Foreign Currency Translation

Transactions in foreign curmencies aré ranslated at the foreign currency exchanags rabe in ffect at the date of
the fransaction. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are ranslated into US Dollars at the
foreign eurrency closing exchange rate in effect at the year end date. Fereign currency exchange differences
arising on translation and realised gains and losses on disposals or sefiements of assets and liabilites are
recognised in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income. Foreign currency exchange gains or losses relating
to investments at fair value through profit or less, denvative finandgal investments, and all ather foreign
currency exchange gains or losses relating to monetary items, including cash and cash equivalents, are
reflected in the net realised investment gainf{loss) or net change in unrealised investment gain/{loss) in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(fi Finance Costs

Distributions declared on the Redeemable Participating Units are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as Financs Costs.

(g9) Redeemable Participating Units

All Redeemable Participating Units issued by the Trust provide the investors with the right to redeem for cash
at the value proportionate to the investor's share in the Trusts Met Assets on the redemption date,

In accordance with FRS 102, Section 22 “Liabilities and Equity”, such Units have been classified as a
financia liability at the value of the redemption amount in the Statement of Financial Position, The Trust is
cantractually obliged to redeem Units in accordance with the Prospectus,

4. Valuation Determined by the Valuer

The Valuer is appeinted by the Management Company. The Valuer also has direct responsibiliies to the
Board of Directars of the Manager for certain valuation functions, which are ultimately reflected in the
financial staternents. The Valuer during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 was
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC and the valuation function was performed by the Geldman Sachs Controllers
Division ("Contrallers™),

Az at 31 December 2023 and 31 Dacember 2022 there were no assets where estimates and assumplions
were used to determine fair value,
5 Taxation

Under current Irish law and practice, the Trust quakfies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section
7398 of the Tawes Consolidation Act, 1887, as amended. On that basis Irish tax is not chargeable to the
Trust on its income or capital gains,

The Trust will not be liable to Irish tax in respect of its income and gains, other than on the occurrence of a
chargeable event. A chargeable event includes any distibution to Unitholders or any encashment,
redemption or transfer of Units or appropriation or cancellafon of Units, or a deemed disposal of Units every
8 years beginning from the date of the acquisition of those Units, but does not occur in respect of:

{a) Unitholders who are neither [rish Resident nor rish Ordinary Resident for tax purposes at the time of
the chargeable event and who have provided the Trust with a relevant dedaration to that effect; and

(b} Certain exempted Irish tax resident Unitholders who have provided the Trust with the necessary signed
statutory declarations.,

17
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

8. Taxation (continued)

A chargeable event does not include:

(i} any transaction in relation to Units held in a recognised clearing system as designated by order of the
Rewvenue Commissioners of Ireland;

{n) an exchange by Unitholders, effected by way of an arm's length bargain where no payment is made to
the Unithelders of Units in the Trust for other Units in the Trust;

(mi) an exchange of Units arising on a qualified amalgamation or reconstuction of a fund with another fund;
of

(v} a ransfer by a Unithclder of the entiterment to a Unit where the transfer is between spouses and former
spouses, subject to certain conditions,

In the absence of an appropriate declaration, the Trust will be liable for Irish tax on the occcurrence of a
chargeable svent and the Trist reserves its right to withhald such taxes from Unitholders. Capital gains,
dividends and interest received by the Trust may be subject to taxes, including withholding taxes in the
countries in which the issuers of investments are located, which may be reflected in the Met Asset Value
{("MAN") of the Trust, Such taxes may not be recoverable by the Trust or its Unitholders.,

& Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Under Amendments ta FRS 102, Sechon 34, the Trust is required to classify fair value measurements using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The Ffair
value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical unrestricted assets or liabilites;

Level 2 - CQuoted prices in markets that are not active or financial instruments for which significant inputs are
observable {including but not limited to quoted prices for simifar secunities, interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, volatiity and credit spreads), either directly or indirectly. This may incude the
Valuers” assumptions in determining fair value measurement;

Level 3- Prices or wvaluations thal require significant uncbservable inputs (including the Valuers'
assumptions in determining fair value measwrement),

The level in the far value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety shall
be determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
enfirety. For this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement. |f a
far value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable
inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement Assessing the significance of a particular input to the
fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or lability.

The following tables provide an analysis of financial instuments that are measured at fair value in
accordance with FRS 102:

[Financial Assets measured at fair value at 31 December 2023
[{Goldman Sachs USS Fund ]
Level 1| Level Level Total

_ us us! u uss

|ﬁnnn¢:f:ﬂ Assets at fair value through profit

or loss

[investments - Long 1.045 320,103 . J1.045.320.103

(Total 1,045,220,103 m 1,045,320,103
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

6 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Less (continued)

[Financial Assets measured at fair value at 31 December 2022
|Goldman Sachs US$ Fund E—
Level 1 Level 2 Leveal Tota

_ Usg| usg u us

|I_=lnnnc1d Assets at fair value through profit

orf loss

[Investments - Long 538,023,568 — - 538023568

[Total 538,023,568] - - 538023568

7. Significant Agreements and Related Parties

Manager

As outlined in Mote 1, the Trust has appeointed GSAMFSL, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of The
Goldman Sache Group, Inc., as its Manager. GSAMFSL is entiled to receive an annual management fee
which shall be accrued daily and paid generally monthly in armears. The amount earned by the Manager was
US588167 for the year under review (31 December 2022: US539,685).

Investment Adviser and Sub-Investment Adviser

The Manager on behalf of the Trust, has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management International (the
“Investment Adviser’), a related party to the Trust as Investment Adwiser to the Trust. The Investment
Adviser has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management Co., Limited as Sub-Investment Adviser to the
Trust, The Investment Adviser is entifled to receive an annual fee, which shall be accrued daily and paid
generally maonthly in arrears.

The annualised rates in effect during the year were:

31-Dec-2023 | 31-Dec-2022
Goldman Sachs USS Fund 0.20% 0.20%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Investment Adviser fees were:

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
Total Fees Waived Total Fees Waived
Goldman Sachs USS Fund USs1, 763,173 USsNil USs793637 | US$162.556

I respect of e Fund's investment in the Master Sub-Fund, the total annoal fees and expenses, to be borne
at the Master Sub-Fund are capped at 0.05%. There are no investment manager fees payable for the X
Dastribution Class.

Total cedinary expenses, including fees and expenses of e Investment Adviser and Depositary together with
the Fund's share of the ordinary operational and administrative expenses of the Master Sub-Fund are
currenty veluntarily limited to 0.70% per annum of the daily NAY atributable to Redsemable Participating
Unitholders.,

The Investment Adviser has followed a voluntary policy of seeking to maintain a positive net yield in respect
of the Fund. This is achieved through various forms of fee waivers and expense reimbursements. The
positive yield target may vary from time to ime at the discretion of the Investment Adviser, and such
nformation may be reported to the Fund's Unitholders or the public in a manner that reflects the actual or
rounded yield of the Fund. Yield targets are not to be construed as guarantess or assurances of performance
or preservation of capital. The Trusfs prospectus provides more information, ncluding the key nsks of
investing in the Fund,
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)

Investment Adviser and Sub-Investment Adviser {continued)

Investment Adwviser/Diskibutor/Agent Company fees waived in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Statement of Financial Position may comprise of amounts waived as a result of the expense cap and/or
amounts waived as a result of maintaining a positive net yield, In keeping with the above policy, the Sub-
Investrment Adviser has provided expense reimbursements of USENI for the year ended 31 December 2023
{31 December 2022: USENIl) and recovered previcusly provided expense reimbursements of USENIl for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (31 December 2022: US$53 805).

Directors of the Manager Remuneration

Ms. Victoria Parry and Mr. Nicholas Phillips are external Directors and have no executive functon with the
Investment Adviser of its related party companies. Ms. Barbara Healy s an Independent Director and a
Director of the Manager. The Manager pays each external Director an annual fee for their services as a
Director of the Manager. Ms. Victoria Parry is an independent Cirector,

hr. Alan Corcoran and Mr. John Whittaker are refated parties to the Investrnent Adviser and received no
compensation from the Trust, The Manager pays Mr, Alan Corcoran and Mr, John Whittaker compensation
for their services as Directors and as emplovees of the Manager. Mr, Bob Van Overbeek is a related party to
the Investrment Adviser and receives no compensation from the Truster the Manager.

During the year, Mr. Tom Fiegerald was a related party to the Investment Adviser and received no
compensation from the Trust. Priar to his resignation, the Manager paid Mr. Tom Fitzgerald compensation for
iz senvices as a Director and an employee of the Manager.

hr. Jobin Whittaker was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors as of 3 Januwary 2023,
hdr. Bob Van Overbeek was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors as of 24 Apnil 2023,
hr. Tom Fitzgerald resigned as a member of the Bcard of Directors as of 13 June 2023

Mr. Alan Corcoran was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors as of 18 August 2023,

Administrator

The Manager has appointed BNY Mellon Fund Senices (lreland) Designated Actvity Company (the
“Administrator”) as administrator to the Trust, The Administrator is responsible for the administration of the
Trusts affairs including the caleulation of the MAY and the preparation of financial staternents, The
Administrator receives a fee for its sernvices payable cut of the assets of the Trust payable generally monthly
i arrears.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Administration fees for the Trust were USS30,389 (31 December
2022: US$30,408),

Depositary

The Trust has appomted The Bank of New York Mellon SANY, Dublin Branch to act as the Depositary of the
Furnd pursuant to the Trust Deed. In accordance with and subject to the Trust Deed, the Depositary provides
gafe custody for all assets of the Fund which are held under the control of the Depositary in the Depositary's
eustedial netwark. The Depositary receives a fee far its senvices payable cut of the assets of the Trust
payable generally monthly in arrears.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Depositary fees for the Trust were US$519,998 (31 December
2022: US515,998).

Distributors and Agent Membar Company
The Trust has appointed the Manager as Principal Distributor. The Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs
Japan Co. Limited, a related party to the Trust, to act as Distibutor in Japan.

The Manager has appeinted Goeldman Sachs Asset Management Co. Limited, a related party to the Trust, ta
act as Agent Company in Japan.
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)

Distributors and Agent Member Company (continued)
The Trust will pay the Distributors and Agent Company in Japan a fee at an annual rate based on the daily
MNAV atributable to Redsemabls Participating Unitholders of G Trust.

The annualised rates in effect during the year were:
31-Dec-2023 | 31-Dec-2022

Goldman Sachs USS Fund

Distributor fees 0.25% 0.21%
Agent Member Company fees 0.02% 0.02%

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 the Distributer and Agent Company fees
were:

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
Goldman Sachs USS Fund Total Fees Waived Total Fees Waived
Distributor fees US52 203,943 USENIl LISSR32 624 USs162 562
| Agent Member Company fees US%176,301 USEMil LUSE79,354 US$11. 460

Transfer Agent

The Manager has appointed CACEIS Investor Services (Ireland) Limited® (the “Transfer Agent’) as registrar
and transfer agent of the Trust pursuant to the Registrar and Transfer Agent Agreement between the
Manager and the Transfer Agent. The day-to-day services provided to the Trust by the Transfer Agent
include receiving and processing subscriptions and redemplion orders, alloting and izsuing Units and
maintaining the Unitholder register for the Units. The Transfer Agent is paid a fee quarterly in arears out of
the net assets of the Trust. The amount earned by the Transfer Agent was US$208, 730 for the year under
review (31 December 2022 US5150 888),

* BBG Investor Services Ireland Limited was rebrandsd as CAGELS Invastor Seevices Ireland Limidad following CAGEIS's acouasiion of
RBC nvestor Sapnces Bank 5.4 ellactaes 3 July 2003

Valuer

The Directors of the Manager have appointed Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC as its delegate to act as the Valuer
and the valuation funcion was performed by Controllers during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31
Drecember 2022,

Unit Capital

The minimum nitial irvestment amount is US$1000 for the Fund. The minimum subsequent investment
amount is US50.01, All of the Japanese distributors can, at their discretion, set higher minimum inital and
subsequent invesiment amounts.

The relevant movernents on Unit capital are shown on the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redesmable Parficipating Units. The Fund invests the proceeds from the issue of Units in

appropriate nvestments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions when necessary. Units in
the Fund may be redeemed daily on demand.
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

8. Unit Capital (continued)

The following tables summarise the activity in the Fund's Units,

Balance at Balance at
31-Dec-2022 Subscriptions Redemptions 31-Dec-2023

Goldman Sachs USS Fund
USE Base Distibution | 53960118515 | 258 230,124,815 | {207.270,425,458) | 104010817874
Balance at Balance at
31-Dec-2021 Subscriptions Redemptions 31-Dec-2022

Goldman Sachs USS Fund
USS Base Distibution | 34547443013 | 125,857,053.947 | {106,444 378, 445) 53.960.118.515

9. Net Asset Value ("NAV")

The following tables summarise the Met Aszet Value and the NAV per Unit of the Fund.

31-Dec-2023 3-Dec-2022
MNAV NAY Per Unit NAY MAY Per Unit
Goldman Sachs USS
Fund
LS5 Base Distribution | US51.0459.198.179 US5£0.01 U55538,601.185 LS%0.01
31-Dec-2021
NAV MNAYV Per Unit
Goldman Sachs USS
Fund _
1155 Base Distribution |  USS345,474.430 LIS£0.01

10. Distributions

The Trust intends that substantially all the net investment income, if any, of the Fund will be declared as a
dividend and paid at least annually to the Unitelders the Fund. Met capital and currency gains realised on
the Fund's investments are expected to be retained by the Fund.

The following table summarises dividends declared by the Fund,

31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
Goldman Sachs USS Fund US540.769.630 US$6.435.414

11. Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks
The Fund invests all, ar substantially all, of its assets in the Master Sub-Fund, as cutlined in Mote 1.

The Furd's investing actvites through the Master Sub-Fund expose it to various types of risks that are
associated with the financial investments and markets in which it and the Master Sub-Fund invest (the
“Investrment Risks™).

The Fund's investment portfclio is comprised of a collective investment scheme at year end. The Directers of
the Manager have appointed the Investment Adviser to manage the investment risks of the Fund, The main
types of financial risks which the Fund iz exposed to through the Master Sub-Fund are market risk, liquidity
risk and credit risk. The prospectus provides details of these and other types of risk some of which are
additional to that information provided in these financial statements.

The risk management policies employed in relation to the Fund are outlined below:
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A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk

The potential for changes in the fair value of the Fund's investment in the Master Sub-Fund is referred to as
market risk. Commanly used categories of market risk include currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk.

(i) Currency risks may result kom exposures to changes in spol prices, forward prices and volatiliies of
clIrency rates,

(i) Interest rate risks may result from exposures lo changes in the level, slope and curvature of the yield
curve, the volatility of interest rates, mortgage prepayment speeds and credit spreads,

{iii} Other price risks are the risk that the fair value of an investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices other than those ansing from currency risk or interest rate risk and may result from
exposures to changes in the prices and volatiiies of individual equities, equity baskets, equity indices,
and commodities.

The Master Sub-Fund's market nsk strategy 1= driven by its investment nsk and return objectives.

Market risk i= managed through the application of risk budgeting principles. The Master Sub-Fund's
Investment Adviser determines an appropriate risk target. commonly referred to as expected or predicted {i.e.
forward-locking) Tracking Errer, employing a risk budgetng framewark.

The AM Divisional Risk Management group at Goldman Sachs ("AM Risk’) is responsible for overall risk
governance structure and establishing appropriate risk management best practices. The risk governance
structure includes idenBfying, measunng, monitaring, escalating and remediating applicable risks. AM Risk
uses a number of risk mefrics to monitor risks induding menitoring sensitivities, volatility, and VaR. The team
presents or provides written materials on the risks to the Board no less frequently than semi-annually, Details
of the Fund's investment portfolio at the reporting date are disdosed in the Schedule of Investments,

L. Currency Risk

The Master Sub-Fund, in which the Fund invests, only invests in assets denominated in its functonal
currency 5o ithas no exposure to currency risk.

li. Interest Rate Risk

The Master Sub-Fund, in which the Fund invests, may invest in fixed income securities. Any change to the
relevant interest rates for particular securifies may result in the Master Sub-Fund's Investrment Advizer being
unable to secure similar returns upon the expiry of contracts or the sale of securities. In addition, changes to
prevailing interest rates or changes in expectations of future rates may result in an increase or decrease in
the value of the securities held. In general, if interest rates rise, the value of the fixed income securities will
declne. A decline n interest rates will, iIn general, have the opposite effect. All fixed income secunfies and
fisating rate securities, together with their coupon rate and maturity date, are discdosed in the Schedule of
Investments of the Master Sub-Fund,

At the year end the only investments of the Fund were in the Master Sub-Fund. The Master Sub-Fund is a
money market fund with a maximum weighted average matunty of 80 days. Given the nature of the
investments in the underlying Master Sub-Fund, it would be expected that the NAV of the Master Sub-Fund
would have a very low sensitivity to changing interest rates and other market conditions, However, it is
expected that the yields on the underlying Master Sub-Fund will move consistently with changes in the
overnight rates and prevailing moeney market benchmarks.
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A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2023

11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk (continued)
iil. Other Price Risk

Other price risk is the risk that the value of a finandal investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate nsk whether caused by factors
specific to an individual investment, its issuer or any other factor affecting fnandal investments in the market.

The Fund's investments in collective investment schemes are based upon the net asset values per share as
supplied by the collective investment scheme, in accordance with the valuaton policy of the applicable
callective investment scheme as oufiined in its prospectus. While it is expected that the assets of the
collective investment schemes will generally be valued by an independent third party administrator or other
gervice provider, there may be circumstances in which certain secunties or other assets of a collective
investment scheme may not have a readily ascertainable market price. In such circumstances, the manager
ef the relevant eolleclive investment scheme may be required to value such securiies of instiuments.

The Fund has no significant exposure to other price risk.

Currency, interest rate and other price risks are managed by the Master Sub-Fund's Investment Adviser as
part of the integrated market risk management processes described above.

(b} Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk iz the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting ocbligations associated with financial
liabilities that are seted by delivering cash or anather financial asset. Among other things, liquidity could be
impaired by an inability to access secured and'or unsecured sources of financing, an inability to sell assets or
unforeseen outflows of cash or collateral. This situation may anse due to crcumstances outside of the Fund's
cantrl, such as a general market disruption or an operational problem affecting the Fund or third parties,
Alzo, the ability to sell assets may be impaired if other market participants are seeking to sell similar assets at
the same time,

The Fund's investment in the Master Sub-Fund may impose greater restictions on redemptions than those
imposed by the Fund, This indudes offering less frequent redemption dates than are offered by the Fund to
its unitholders.

The Furd provides for the subscripion and redemption of Units and it is thersfore exposed to the hquidity risk
associated with Unitholder redemptions in accordance with the terms in the prospectus. The Fund is
managed to indude liguid investments which the Investment Adviser believes are sufficient to meet normal
liquidity needs although substantial redemptions of Units in the Fund could require the Fund to Bquidate their
investments mere rapidly than otherwise desirable in erder to raise cash for the redemptions and changes in
the liquidity of the Fund's underlying investments once acquired can adversely impact its position in this
respect. These factors could adversely affect the value of the Units redeemed, the valuation of the Units that
remain cutstanding and the liquidity of the Fund's remaining assets if more liquid assets have been sold to
meet redemptions.

The Fund's prospectus provides for the daily subscription of Units and the daily redemption of Units. The
Furd is therafore exposed to the liquidity riek of meeting Unitholder redemptions.

Az at 21 December 2023, the Fund's investment in the Master Sub-Fund i1s 1.57% of the Master Sub-Fund's
net assets (as at 31 December 2022 0.95%).
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)

(b} Liguidity Risk {continued)
The following tables set forth details of Unitholders with holdings greater than 1086 of the Fund's net assets,
Goldman Sachs USS Fund

31-Dec-2023 -Dec-2022

Unitholder 1! ar.28% Unitholder 1° 43.11%
Unithalder 2 3285% Unithokder 21 24.50%
Unithalder 3 17.28% Unitholder 31 13.54%
Other Unitholders? 12.58% Other Unitholders' 18.76%
Total 100.00% Total 100.00%

'WUnitholder 15 a Distributor.

MNote: Unithoiders are shown in crder of holding at the speafic period end so Unitholder 1 on 31 December
2023 may not be the same as Unithalder 1 on 31 December 2022

As at 31 Decernber 2022 and 31 Decermber 2022, all finandial liabiliies were payable within three months of
year end.

The Directors of the Manager may have certain liquidity management tools available to them where permitted
by the Fund's Prospectus and constituional docurmnents and where they consider the imposition of such tools
to be in the best interests of both remaining and redeeming investors. This may include the application of
redemplion gates, temporary suspension of redemptions or the imposition of iquidity charges (subject to any
required approvals of the regulator and engagement with unitholders).

{¢) Credit Risk

o

Credit and countesparty risk is the risk that one party to a financial investment will cause a financial loss for
the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Procedures have been adopted to reduce credit risk related to its dealings with counterparties, Before
ransacting with any counterparty, the Investment Adviser or its related parties evaluate both credit-
worthiness and reputation by conducting a eredit analysiz of the party, their business and reputation. The
credit risk of approved counterparties is then monitored on an ongeing basis, induding periodic reviews of
financial statements and interim financial reports as needed.

The Fund and the Master Sub-Fund in which it invests are subject to a number of risks relating to the
insolvency, administration, Bguidation o other formal protection from creditors (Cinsolvency”) of the
Depositary. These risks include without Bmitation:

{il The loss of all cash held with the Depositary which is not being reated as dient money at the level of
the Depasitary ("client money’),

(i} The loss of all cash which the Depositary has failed to treat as client money in accordance with
procedures {if any) agreed with the Trust

{i}) The loss of some or all of any securifies held on tust which have not been properly segregated and
s0 identified at the level of the Depositary (“trust assets™) or client money held by or with the
Depositary.

(i) The loss of some or all assets due to the incorrect operaton of accounts by the Depositary or due to
the process of identifying and transferring the relevant trust assets andor client money including any
deduction to meet the administrative costs of an insclvency,

(v} Losses caused by prolonged delays in receiving transiers of balances and regaining control over the
relevant assets.
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11.
(c)

(d)

12.

13.

Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
Credit Risk {continued)

An insolvency could cause severe disruption o the Fund's investment activity, In some circumstances, this
could cause the Directors of the Manager to ternporarnily suspend the caleulation of the MAVs and dealings in
Units.

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2022, the following financial assets were exposed to credit risk:
investments in collective investment schemes and other receivables, The carrying amount of financial assets
best reflects the maximum credit risk exposure at the reporting date,

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date can be analysed as follows:

Goldman Sachs USS Fund 31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
Agsels Uss Uss
Collective investment scheme 1,045 320,103 538 023 588
Income receivable 4843 834 1,810,350
Irvestment Advisor / Distibutor fees waived and

| expenses reimbursed receivable = 246,800

| Other assels 20,257 =
Total Assets 1,050,104,194 540,080,718

The table below sets forth concentrations of counterparty or issuer credit risk greater than 5% of the net
assets atbibutable to holders of Redeemable Participating units at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022,

Goldman Sachs USE Fund 31-Dec-2023 31-Dec-2022
Institution Capacity o of Net Assets % of Net Assets
Goldman Sachs WSS Treasury Liquid Collechve
Reserves Fund Investment

— X Distribution Class’ Scheme 99.63 99.71

'Related Party to Goldman Sache Unit Trust {Ireland).

Additional Risks

{i} Sustainability Risk

Sustainability risk iz defined in Article 3 of Regulation {EU) 2019/2088 (the “Sustainable Finance Disclosure
Regulation”) as an environmental, social or governance event or condifion, that if it occurs, could cause an
actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of the investment. Please refer to Reports of the
Management Company Il = Sustainable Finance Disclosure Regulation (SFDR) (Unaudited) for information
on the integration of sustainabidlity risks in our investment decisien-making process.

Additional details of nisks not disclosed in these Financial Statements, such as operational or tax risks, can
be found in the Prospectus.

Cash and Bank Overdraft
There was no cash or bank overdraft held as at 31 December 2023 or 31 December 2022,
Cash Flow Statement

The Trust has elected to apply the exemption available to open-ended investment funds under FRS 102,
Section 7 "Statement of Cash Flows™, not to prepare a cash flow statement.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

21,

Statement of Changes in the Portfolio
The Material Porffalio Changes reflsct the aggregate purchases of a security exceeding one per cent of the

total value of purchases for the year and aggregate disposals greater than one per cent of the total value of
the sales. The Material Portfolio changes are shown on page 28,

Soft Commissions

The Fund did not enter inte any third party soft commission arrangements or pay commissions for research
and'or execution for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,

Prospectus

The latest Prospectus of the Trust was issued on 20 December 2022,

Contingent Liabilities

There were no contingent habilibes as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,

Significant Events during the year

hr. John Whittaker was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors as of 3 January 2023,
. Bob Van Overbeek was appaointed as a member of the Board of Directors as of 24 April 2023,
Mr. Tom Fitzgerald resigned as a member of the Board of Directors as of 13 June 2023

Mr. Alan Corcoran was appointed as a member of the Board of Directors as of 18 August 2023,
There weia no other significant events affecting the Tiust during the year spded 31 December 2023,
Subsequent Events

There were no subsequent events affeciing the Trust since 31 December 2023,

. Indemnifications

The Manager may enter into contracts on behalf of the Trust that contain a variety of indemnifications. The
Trust's maximum exposure under these arangements is unknown. However, the Trust has not had prior
claims or losses pursuant to hese contracts.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Manager approved the audited financial staternents on 16 April 2024,

ar
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Goldman Sachs US$ Fund
A Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)
Schedule of Investments
As at 31 December 2023

Fair % of
Value Net
Heldings Description Yield™ uss Assels
Transferable securities admitted to an official
exchange listing or traded on a regulated
market
UCITS COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT SCHEME
1.045,320,103 Goldman Sachs US$ Treasury Liquid Reserves
Fund - X Distnbution Class (. i%.09. & 540% 1045320103 9963
TOTAL UCITS COLLECTIVE INVESTMENT
SCHEME 1,045,320,103 20.63
TOTAL INVESTMENTS - LONG 1,045,220,103 29.63
Total Investments
UCITS Collective Investmeant Scheme 1,045 320,103 99 63
Other assets and liabilities 3878076 0.37
MNet Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redesmable Participating Units 1,049,198,178 100.00

™ The interest rate shown for the Goldman Sachs USE Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund represents the yield
effective as at 31 December 2023,

P Related party to Golkdman Sachs Unit Trust {Ireland).

15 The Fund is invested in the non-Investment Advisory fee bearing share class of the Goldman Sachs US%
Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund.

B Hepresents 99.63% of total assets.

i Fund is domiciled in Ireland.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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2024

23

2023 12 31

2023 12 31
68,935,010,740 10,815,903,185
534,260,558 83,825,482
202,107,174 31,710,616
135,781,035 21,304,044
1,423,768 223,389
261,435 41,019
69,808,844,710 10,953,007,735
6,213,700 974,930
331,409 51,998
287,197,881 45,061,348
3,035,427,607 476,258,592
10,502,075 1,647,776
633,102 99,334
1,054,408 165,437
241,680 37,920
214,343 33,630
26,299 4,126
1,388,321 217,828
3,343,230,825 524,552,916
66,465,613,885 10,428,454,819
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2022 12 31

2022 12 31
56,676,539,432 8,892,549,037
10,300,000 1,616,070
36,915,935 5,792,110
1,163,699 182,584
56,724,919,066 8,900,139,801
9,544,292 1,497,499
7,694,527 1,207,271
183,053,715 28,721,128
8,777,684 1,377,219
579,266 90,887
838,750 131,600
141,156 22,147
171,324 26,881
29,372 4,608
1,278,040 200,524
212,108,126 33,279,765
56,512,810,940 8,866,860,036
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2023 12 31

2023 12 31
1,079,393,449 169,356,832
2,087,392,994 327,511,961
(8,199,221) (1,286,458)
3,158,587,222 495,582,335
115,416,817 18,108,899
1,927,052 302,354
3,785,883 594,005
2,377,711 373,063
454,573 71,323
86,526 13,576
7,018,567 1,101,213
131,067,129 20,564,433
(12,398,443) (1,945,316)
118,668,686 18,619,117
3,039,918,536 476,963,218
(2,985,725,130) (468,460,273)
(2,985,725,130) (468,460,273)
54,193,406 8,502,945
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2022 12 31

125/230

2022 12 31
292,106,608 45,831,527
718,282,819 112,698,574
(57,282,787) (8,987,669)
953,106,640 149,542,432

96,729,645 15,176,881
1,836,248 288,107
3,385,930 531,252
1,259,320 197,587

347,314 54,494
54,427 8,540
6,653,757 1,043,974
110,266,641 17,300,836
(11,382,454) (1,785,907)
98,884,187 15,514,929
854,222,453 134,027,503
(846,769,079) (132,858,068)
(846,769,079) (132,858,068)
7,453,374 1,169,434
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2023 12 31

2023 12 31
56,512,810,940 8,866,860,036
438,400,372,478 68,785,018, 442
(428,501,762,939) (67,231,926,605)
54,193,406 8,502,945
9,952,802,945 1,561,594,782
66,465,613, 885 10,428, 454,819
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2023 12 31

2022 12 31
55,868, 788,509 8,765,812,917
438,884,478,292 68,860,974, 644
(438,247,909,235) (68,761,096,959)
7,453,374 1,169,434
644,022,431 101,047,119
56,512,810,940 8,866,860,036
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2023 12 31
@
50,513,700 United States Treasury Bill .100% 02/01/2024 50,506,544 08
14,143,800 United States Treasury Bill .150% 04/01/2024 14,137,730 02

.264% 16/01/2024  2,274,735,494
.285% 18/01/2024  1,440,024,649
.285% 25/01/2024  4,121,764,310
.269% 01/02/2024  4,769,201,022
.275% 13/02/2024 61,405,251
.270% 20/02/2024 37,202,292
319% 27/02/2024 129,551,172
.264% 28/03/2024  4,934,184,432
252% 04/04/2024 320,952,372
.238% 09/04/2024 32,933,677
.332% 11/04/2024 106,135,917
.210% 16/04/2024 280,808,976
.218% 23/04/2024  2,006,157,387
.321% 25/04/2024 935,829,408
.166% 30/04/2024  2,936,736,746
.337% 02/05/2024 258,641,840
.254% 09/05/2024 277,256,230
.130% 20/06/2024  1,268,640,892
.080% 27/06/2024  2,237,227,970
.083% 31/10/2024 564,946,828
.900% 29/11/2024  1,277,743,639
.595%  26/12/2024 939,586,598
.291% 31/01/2024  6,160,660,568
.288% 30/04/2024  3,193,990,568
.327% 31/07/2024  2,217,810,970

2,279,735,500 United States Treasury Bill
1,443,627,500 United States Treasury Bill
4,136,338,000 United States Treasury Bill
4,790,937,900 United States Treasury Bill
61,794,600 United States Treasury Bill
37,476,600 United States Treasury Bill
130,651,500 United States Treasury Bill
4,997,758,100 United States Treasury Bill
325,414,900 United States Treasury Bill
33,415,000 United States Treasury Bill
107,747,700 United States Treasury Bill
285,183,900 United States Treasury Bill
2,039,564,800 United States Treasury Bill
952,011,700 United States Treasury Bill
2,988,195,800 United States Treasury Bill
263,406,300 United States Treasury Bill
282,576,400 United States Treasury Bill
1,300,326,600 United States Treasury Bill
2,294,870,000 United States Treasury Bill
590,282,600 United States Treasury Bill
1,338,401,400 United States Treasury Bill
984,840,000 United States Treasury Bill
6,160,532,700 United States Treasury Floating Rate Note
3,194,333,100 United States Treasury Floating Rate Note
2,217,274,600 United States Treasury Floating Rate Note

53,122,200 United States Treasury Note/Bond .983% 15/11/2024 51,129,441 08
134,733,600 United States Treasury Note/Bond .024% 15/11/2024 131,422,224 20
42,406,600 United States Treasury Note/Bond .847% 30/11/2024 41,335,610 06
36,491,400 United States Treasury Note/Bond _913% 15/12/2024 35,107,008 05
145,513,100 United States Treasury Note/Bond .913% 31/12/2024 140,846,816 21
12,163,800 United States Treasury Note/Bond .929%  31/12/2024 11,833,465 02

A DM DM DD DO O MDOOO OO OO 000000000000 g aal
O 0O 0O 0O 00O WHhNORRPROWROORMREWOOOO-NOOO-NOONWO O
n
N

579,570,300 United States Treasury Note/Bond 983% 31/12/2024 575,262,650

43,835,710,696  65.96
43,835,710,696  65.96

18,772,289 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5.369% 02/01/2024 18,772,289 0.03
542,054,295 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5.370% 02/01/2024 542,054,294 0.82
152,410,353 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5.370% 02/01/2024 152,410,353  0.23
299,234,785 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5.370% 02/01/2024 299,234,785  0.45
55,591,832 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5.370% 02/01/2024 55,501,832  0.08
172,063,181 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5.370% 02/01/2024 172,063,181  0.26
21,989,837 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5.370% 02/01/2024 21,989,837  0.03
8,193,399 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(®) 5.371% 02/01/2024 8,193,399  0.01
300,456,153 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5.370% 02/01/2024 300,456,153 0.45
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2023 12 31

@

.370% 02/01/2024 72,106,804
.370% 02/01/2024 45,786,436
.365% 02/01/2024 1,693,068
.370% 02/01/2024 169,151,828
.370% 02/01/2024 36,342,178
.370% 02/01/2024 314,186,374
.370% 02/01/2024 441,576,106
.370% 02/01/2024 29,389,025
.370% 02/01/2024 389,798,799
.370% 02/01/2024 25,062,149
.370% 02/01/2024 55,646,097
.370% 02/01/2024 292,122,976
.370% 02/01/2024 56,372,019
.300% 02/01/2024 100,000,000
.360% 02/01/2024 500,000,000
.360% 02/01/2024  1,500,000,000
.310% 02/01/2024 100,000,000
.330% 02/01/2024  2,850,000,000
.330% 02/01/2024  1,000,000,000
.330% 02/01/2024 500,000,000

72,106,804 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
45,786,436 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
1,693,068 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(P) 5
169,151,828 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
36,342,178 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
314,186,374 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
441,576,106 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
29,389,025 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
389,798,799 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
25,062,149 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
55,646,097 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
292,122,976 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
56,372,019 Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd Repo(b) 5
100,000,000 Banco Santander SA Repo(b) 5
500,000,000 BNP Paribas Repo(P) 5
1,500,000,000 BNP Paribas Repo(P) 5
100,000,000 BofA Securities Repo(b) 5
2,850,000,000 Citigroup Global Markets Inc Repo(P) 5
1,000,000,000 Citigroup Global Markets Inc Repo(b) 5
500,000,000 Citigroup Global Markets Inc Repo(b) 5
1,000,000,000 Citigroup Global Markets Inc Repo(b) 5.330% 02/01/2024  1,000,000,000
194,540,000 Commornwealth Bank of Australia Repo(b) 5.420% 02/01/2024 194,540,000
405,210,000 Commonwealth Bank of Australia Repo(P) 5.420% 02/01/2024 405,210,000
196,790,000 Commonwealth Bank of Australia Repo(b) 5.420% 02/01/2024 196,790,000
255,320,000 Commonwealth Bank of Australia Repo(b) 5.420% 02/01/2024 255,320,000
243,750,000 Commonwealth Bank of Australia Repo(b) 5.420% 02/01/2024 243,750,000
63,370,000 Commonwealth Bank of Australia Repo(b) 5.420% 02/01/2024 63,370,000
143,230,000 Commonwealth Bank of Australia Repo(P) 5.420% 02/01/2024 143,230,000
197,790,000 Commonwealth Bank of Australia Repo(P) 5.420% 02/01/2024 197,790,000
2,000,000,000 Credit Agricole CIB Repo(0) 5.400% 03/01/2024  2,000,000,000
300,000,000 Daiwa Capital Markets America Inc Repo(P) 5.340% 02/01/2024 300,000,000
90,441,176 Daiwa Capital Markets Inc Repo(0) 5.360% 02/01/2024 90,441,176
500,000,000 MUFG Securities (Canada) Ltd Repo(b) 5.350% 02/01/2024 500,000,000
219,512,979 Norges Bank Repo(P) 5.350% 02/01/2024 219,512,979
163,034,952 Norges Bank Repo(0) 5.350% 02/01/2024 163,034,952
198,006,530 Norges Bank Repo(0) 5.350% 02/01/2024 198,006,530
325,344,497 Norges Bank Repo(0) 5.350% 02/01/2024 325,344,496
620,723,348 Norges Bank Repo(P) 5.350% 02/01/2024 620,723,348
411,503,145 Norges Bank Repo(P) 5.350% 02/01/2024 411,503,145
374,148,054 Norges Bank Repo(P) 5.350% 02/01/2024 374,148,054
766,839,045 Norges Bank Repo(0) 5.350% 02/01/2024 766,839,045
713,046,607 Norges Bank Repo(0) 5.350% 02/01/2024 713,046,607
125,440,218 Norges Bank Repo(0) 5.350% 02/01/2024 125,440,217
341,259,513 Norges Bank Repo(P) 5.350% 02/01/2024 341,259,513
5,200,000,000 State Street Bank And Trust Co Repo(€) 5.320% 02/01/2024  5,200,000,000

~N O O R P OO OO OO0 OO0 OO0 WOOoOo o OO OOk OF hAONOOOOOOOOOOOOO O o
o
=

25,099,300,044

w
<
~
o

25,099,300,044  37.76

68,935,010,740 103.72
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2023 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31 2022 12 31
43,835,710,696 65.96 11,451,781,781 20.26
25,099,300,044 37.76 45,224,757,651 80.03
(2,469,396,855) (3.72) (163,728,492) (0.29)
66,465,613,885 100.00 56,512,810,940 100.00
@ 75 10bps
(b)
©
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2024
986,140 154,725
851 134
985,289 154,592
98,528,924,065
0.01 1.5690
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1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000 2024
2,500 39.23 336 25,000,002

@

2018 20

2011 61
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169,106,593

892,380,793

293,533,953

612,654,513

413,049,855

21,712,878,937

17,464,867,499

681,843,612

12 91,086,651,502

838,418,419

203,396,650

36 11,812,511,406

4,833,900,000
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23 103

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Ireland

2024 30
156.90
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
888,616 139,423,850 896,937 140,729,415
131 20,554 ) (785)

(887,960) (139,320,924)

(890,909) (139,783,622)

787 123,480 6,023 945,009
(110) (17,259) (740) (116,106)
677 106,221 5,283 828,903
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2022 12 31

49,967 7,839,822

181,485 28,474,997

231,452 36,314,819

(201,169)  (31,563,416)

30,283 4,751,403

25,000 3,922,500

5,283 828,903

2023 12 31
58,497 9,178,179

208,274 32,678,191

266,771 41,856,370

10 (235,811) (36,998,746)
30,960 4,857,624

11 25,000 3,922,500
5,960 935,124

30,960 4,857,624

30,283 4,751,403

2024 19
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2023 12 31
2021 12 31 25,000 3,922,500 4,227 663,216 29,227 4,585,716
5,283 828,903 5,283 828,903
(4,227) (663,216) 4,227) (663,216)
2022 12 31 25,000 3,922,500 5,283 828,903 30,283 4,751,403
677 106,221 677 106,221
2023 12 31 25,000 3,922,500 5,960 935,124 30,960 4,857,624
2023 2022 12 31 4,227,274
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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2023 12 31
47 49
10282 200
www. goldmansachs.com/shareholders
101 101
2014
101 I
45(h) 46 52
13 91 99
15 110 113(a) 114 115
118 119(a) (©) 120 127 129
9@(C )
38
10(F) 16 40
30 31
24 17
24

15
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
131 )
131 )
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
1,171 899
1,171 899
2022 2022
2022
34,698 2022 24,986
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
744,534 733,463
34,436 34,824
82,101 100,226
18,015 17,085
4,636 3,700
4,238 1,611
887,960 890,909
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31
39,525 38,750
39,525 38,750
2022 12 31
22 2022 22
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
12.5 152 763
® (©)
(®) 143 760
(33) (20)
(33) (20)
110 740
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
787 6,023
98 753
3 1
© (10)
18 )
110 740
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12.5
2021
750
15
2024 15
2023 15
2023 12 20 675/2023
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
73 38
73 38
2022 12 31 38 21
33 20
2 )
2023 12 31 73 38
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
153,722 160,069
54,115 21,190
364 188
73 38

208,274 181,485
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10
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
212,487 164,622
1,975 35,423
21,349 1,124
235,811 201,169
11
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
25,000,000 25,000 25,000,000 25,000
2 2
2018 12 19
25,000,000
12
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
4,227
4,227
2023 2022 12 31 4,227,274
13
2022 12 31

14
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2023
Goldman Sachs Lux Investment Funds
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266.3
2022 12 31

2024
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2022 12 31 231.2 233.2
200.9

148/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

149/230



EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )

Ooooooooooooooooooad

GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOLUNT
for the vear ended 31 December 2023

Year ended
31 December 2022
LI5S 000

BO,937
(3}

(890,900)

6,023

(740

MNote Year ended

31 December 2023

LTSS W)

Tumover BEBole

Interest receivable and similar income A

Admmisirative expenscs & (867,260)
OPERATING PROFIT AND PROFIT BEFORE

TANATION 787

Tax on profil 7 (110

T

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

5,283

The operating profits of the company are derived from continuing operations,

The company has no recognized gams and losses other than those mchided in the profit and loss account for the vear

shown above and therefore no separate staternent of ¢omprehensive income has been presented,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

= 1y -
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET

as al 31 December 2023

MNote 31 December 2023 31 December 2022
LISS" 0iny LSS (M)
CURRENT ASSETS
Cazh at bank and in band Sg407 49,067
Debtors o9 208,274 181,485
264,771 231,452
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE
WITHIN ONE YEAR 1k (2358111 (201,169
NET CURRENT ASSETS AND NET ASSETS 30,060 30,283
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 1 25,000 25000
Profit and loes account 5960 5283
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS 30,960 30,283

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Barbara Healy John Whittaker

Director Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

=1k =
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the vear ended 31 December 2023

Called up share Profit and loss  Tolal shareholders’

capital account funds

LSS (M LISE 00 LSS 000

Balance at 31 December 2021 25040 4.227 20227
Profit for the financial vear - 5.283 5,283
Dividends paid . (4.227) (4.227)
Balance at 31 December 2022 25,0y 5253 30,283
Profit for the financial period - 677 a77
Driviclends paid = a4 e
Balance at 31 December 2023 25, (M) 2,060 30,950

Mo interim dividend was paid to the intermediate parent for 2023 (31 December 2022: USS4,227,274). The directors do
ot recommmend the payment of a fmal dividend in respect of the vear ended 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: USS
mil).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

=2 =
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMEBER 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

The comparsy 15 a private hmited compary and 5 incorporated and dormeiled in Ireland. The address of its
registered office is 47-49 St. Stephen’s Green, Dublin 2, Ireland.

The immediate parent undertaking is Goldman Sachs Asset Management International Holdings LL.C., a
company moorporated and domiciled inthe United States of America.

The ultimate parent undertaking and the parent company of the smallest and lrgest group for which consolidated
financial statements are prepared is The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc,, a company incorporated in the United States
of America. Copies of s consolidated Nnancial satements can be obtained from Investor Relations, 200 West
Strect, Mew York, WY 10282, United States of America, or at www.goldmansachs.com/shareholders,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
#,  Basis of preparation

The company prepares financial statements under Irish Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (Irish
GAAFP),

The financial statements have been prepared on the gong concemn basis as the Directors are of the view that
the Company can contitie in operational existence for the foreseeable future, The financial statements have
been prepared under the histoncal cost convention and in accerdance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework (FES 101 and Irish law, including the Companies Act 2004,

The following exemptions from the disclesure requirements of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRE) as adopted by the EU have been applied in the preparation of these financial stalements in accordance
with FRS 101;

Q1) IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’ paragraph 45(b) and 46 to 52, These disclosures are provided n the
consolidated fmancial statements of Group Inc.;

(1) IFES 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures®;
(1) [FES 13 “Fair Value Measurement” paragraphs &1-99;

(ivd  IFES 15 “Revenue from Contracis with Customers® second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs
113Gay, 104, 115, 118, 11%a) to (), 12010 127 and 124

vy IAS 1 “Preseniation of Financial Statements” paragraph 38 to present comparative information in
respect of TAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” paragraph 79(2a)ivy,

(vi)  IAS 1 *Presentation of Financial Statements’ paragraphs 1O, 16, and 4040,

(v} [AS 7 "Staternent of Cash Flows';

(v} 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emrors” paragraphs 30 and 31;
(ix) A5 24 'Related Party Disclosures” paragraph 17; and

(%) IAS 24 '‘Related Party Disclosures’ requiraments to disclese transactions with coampanies also wholly
owned within G5 Group.

=13 -
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

2,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMEBER 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

I,

Revenue recogmition

The company accounts for revenues eamed from contracts with clients for investment mEanagement services
under IFRS 15. As such, revenues from these services are recognised when performance obligations related
to the underlying transactions are completed.

If the compary 15 principal to the transaction, the company recognises revenue on contracts with cliemts,
gross of expenses incurred to satisfy some or all itz performance cbligations, The company is principal to
the transaction if it has the primay obligation to provide the service to the clienl. The company satisfies the
performance obligation by itself, or by engaging other GS Group entities to satisfy some or all its
performance obligations on its behalfl Such revenue 15 recognised m fumover and expenses incurred are
recognised in administrative ooqenscs.

Tumover represents management company fees and revenues associated with arrangements where the
company i2 principal to providing services but ultimately sub-delegates provision of these services, such az
portfolio management. IL is recognised on an accruals basis over the period that the related service is
prowvided.

Dividends

Final equity dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity i the period m which the
dividends are approved by the company”s sharetwlder. Interirn equity dividends are recogmised and deducted
from equity when paid.

Foreign currencies

The comparny "= financial statements are presented in ULS. dollars, which is also the company s fimetional
CUTENCY.

Transactions denomimated in foreign currencies are translated into U8, dollars st rates of exchange nuling
o the date the transaction cccurred. Monetary assets and liabilities demominated in foreign currencies are
iranslated into ULS. dollars at rates of exchange naling at the balance sheet date. Foretgn exchange gains and
Insses are recognised m the profit and loss account,

Cash at bank and in hand

Thits mecludes cash at bank and in hand ane highly liquid deposits held in the ordinary course of business,
Financial assets and Mnandal HBabilities

{i)  Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the mstnument,

A financial azzet is derecognized when the contraciual rights to the cash flows from the financial azeet
expire or if the comparny transfers the financial asset and cither a) substantially all the nsk and rewards
of awnership, or b) neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership ad
the company does not retain control of that Anancial assel. A Anancial lability 15 derecogmised only
when it is extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, is cancelled or

expires),

- 14 -
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

2,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMEBER 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
. Financinl assets and nancial Babilities (continued)

(ii) Classification and measurement

The compary classifies its Nmaneial assets as fmancial assets measmred at anortised cost on the basis
of both the company’s business model for managing fmancial assets and the contractual cash flow
characterisiics of the financial assets. The business model reflects how the compary manages particular
groups of assets m onder (o generate fiture cash flows, Where the business model is to hold the assets
to collect contractual cash flows, the company subsequently assesses whether the cash flows represent
solety payments of principal and interest

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows @nd have cash flows that
reprezent solely pavments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost, unless they are
designated at fair value through profi o loss. The company considers whether the cash Nows represent
basic lending amangements and where contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility
meonsistent with a basic lending arrangement the financial asset is classified and measred at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost are mitially messured at fair value plus transsction costs and
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective imerest method, The effective mterest method i a
method of caleuliting the amortised cost of a financial metrument and allocating the interes income
over the relevant period. The effective mterest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cish receipls through the expected life of the fnancial azset of, when appropriste, a shorter period to
the net carry ing amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the comparny
estmnates cash lows considermg all contractual terms of the financial asset but dees not consider future
credit losses. All finance income is recognised in the profit and loss accoumt.

The company classifies its financial labilities as finamcial liabilities measured at amotised cost. The
clazsification, which is determined at initial recognition, depends on the purpose for which they were
acquired or originated.
Financial liabilities measuired ol mmoftised cost are nitially recognized at fair value plus transaclion
costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method (sce above).
Finance costs, including discounts allowed omn issue, are recorded in the profit and loss acceunt.

(i) Offceiting fnancial assels and fnancial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offsel and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
where there is:

{1} Currently a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
{11} Intent to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the hab ity simultaneously,

Where these conditions are not met, financial assets and financial liabilities are presented on a gross
biasis on the balance sheet

g Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the vear comprises current and deferred tac. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss
account,

Current taee is caloulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the couniries where the compary operabes and generates taxable income.

=15-
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMEBER 2023

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

¢ Current and deferred tax (confinued)

Deferred tax 15 recommised in respect of all temporary differences that have orginated, but not reversed at
the balance sheet date, wihere transactions of events have occurred by that date that will result inan obligation

Lo pay meore tax of a right o pay less tax in the further with the followmg exceplions:

{1y Dheferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it is more likely than
nok that there will be suitable tacable profits from which the fiuture reversal of the undertving temporary

differences can be deducted

(i) Deferred tax is measured on an undiscoumted basis o the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods
in which temporary differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date,

3. CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial Aatements requires management to make judgernents, estimates and assurmplions
that affect the amounts recognmsed in these financi@l staterments. The nature of estimation means that actual

outcomes could differ from these estimates.

In the opmion of management. there were no estinates or

Judgemnents made that had a significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial stataments.

4. INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
USSE s LISE" 00
Interest on overmieht deposits 131 (k1]
131 (5
5 DIRECTORS® EMOLUMENTS
The table below presents the company s director’s emoluments:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2023 31 Decembyer 2022
LSS 000 LS5 000
Aggregate emoluments:
For qualifyng services 1,171 |
1,171 B

The amounts included above relate to emoluments paid to three (2022:three ) non-executive directors and o
fowr 2022 three ) executive directors. Company contributions made for four (2022: three) directors in respect

of defined contribution schemes were US334 698 ( USS24 986).
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMEBER 2023

6. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Year ended Year ended
31 Deceamber 2023 31 December 2022
USE 00 USE 000

Fees charged by group undertakings for sib-delegated
functions T44,534 733463
Fees charged by external parties for sub-delegated functions 34,436 34,824
Transaction based expenses g2.101 1060, 22465
Management fees chamzed by growp undertakings (note a) 18,015 17,085
Direct costs of emplovment 4,636 3,704
Other expenses 4,238 1611
857, B, 9049

4. Management fees charged by group indertakings relate to operational and administrative support, and
management services received from group undertakings.

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Anditors’ remuneration €340 525 £38,750
Non-Audit Services - =
€30, 525 £38,.750

There were no other non-audit services provided to the company during the year ended 31 December 2023
or during the vear ended 31 December 2022

The average monthly number of employees, including executive Directors, during the year was 22 (2022;
23

7. TAX ON PROFIT

a.  Amnalysis of charge for the period:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
LSS 0040 LISS 004
Current Tax
Irish corporation tax at 12.5% 152 763
Adjustments i respect of prior periods ] (1]
Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities (See note T{h)) 143 Th
Deferred tax
Other tming differences (33) {200
Adjustrents i respect of prior periods -
Total deferred tax (see mole §) (33) {20y
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 110 T4
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMEBER 2023

7. TAX ON PROFIT (CONTINUED)
b, Factors affecting the tax char ge for the ciurvent perlod:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

USE s LISE" 000

Profit on crdinary activitics before tax 787 6,023
Profit on ordinary activities at standard Irsh

corporation bax rate (12, 596) o 753

Permanent differences 3 1

Adpmstments m respect of prior periods (2 {10y

Exchange differences 1% 4

Current tax charge for the period 1140 T40

c. Factors that may afTect future tax char ges:

The standard rate of Irish corporation tax is 12.5% of prefit before tase, however this is for businesses out of
scope of the OECT Pillar Two agreement, which Ireland signed up to in 2021, For in scope businesses, that
i8, buzinesses with revenues i excess of €750m in af least two of the preceding four years, a minimum
effective tax rate of 15% may apply.

As per the OECD s Pillar Two agreament, certain Multinational Enterprises (MNE), inchiding those which
are domiciled in Treland, will be subject to a minimim 15% tax rate froen 2024 covwards, The EU Minimum
Tax Directive was enacted in Ireland as a part of the Autumn 2023 Finance Act, enabling the application of
the global minimum effective tax rate of 1 5%, for in-scope entitics,

On 20 December 2023, the OECD Administrative Guidance was recognised as part of Insh Pillar Two
legislation following signing of Statutory instnument $752023, This will require that a top-up tax s
caleulated by reference to fnancial sccounting rules, subject to certain adjustments agreed upon by the

CECT and et out in the legisiation.

.8 DEFERRED TAX: ORIGINATION & REVERSAL OF TIMING DIFFERENCES

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
LSS M) LISE" 000
Deferred tax balance comprises:

Other tming differences 73 g
T3 I8

The movernems in the deferred tax balance were as follows:
As at 31 December 2022 38 21
Tranzfier tofrom the profit and loss account for the period 33 20
Exchange differences 2 (3%
As at 31 December 2023 73 38

- 18-
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

10.

1

12.

13

14.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2023

DEBTORS

Detors, all of which are due within one vear of the balance sheet date, comprise:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

LSS 000 LSS 000

Amounts due from customers 153,722 160,065
Amounts due from group undertakings 54115 21,190
Other debstors 64 188
Deferred tax 73 38
208,274 181,485

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

USE 000 LSS 000
Amounts due to group undertak ings 212,487 164,622
Accruals 1,97% 35423
Intercompany bormowings 21,349 1,14
Corporation tax pay able - =
235,511 201,168
SHARE CAPITAL
3 December 2023 3 December 2022

Mo LISE (arid Mo, LSS 00d

Allatied, called up and fully

paid

Ordinary shares of USE1 each 25,000,000 25,000 25,000,000 25,0000
Ordinary shares of €1 cach 2 - 2 -

O 19 December 2018, the compary issued 25,000,000 ordinary shares of US31 at par to Goldman Sachs Asset

Management International Holdings L.L.C., the immediate parent undertaking.

DIVIDENDS PAID
Year ended 31 Year ended
December 2023 31 December 2022
LSS (M) LISE" 000
Interim dividends paid 4,327
4,227

Mo interim dividend was paid for 2023 (3] December 2022 TISS 4,227,274),

FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The company had no financial commitments of contingencies cutstanding at period end (31 December 2022:

US% nil).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There are no subsequent events affective the company up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

S8
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

15.

16.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2023

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

During the period, ag & part of a wider G5 Group initiative, the company experienced a change to the compaosition
of furds for which it provides management company and AIFM services. On 1 November 2023, the GS Funds,
G5 Funds 1T and Goldman Sachs L Investment Funds umbrellas appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Managerent
BV, as their management company and AIFM, in place of the comparry. This receganisation intends to generate
efficiencies by refining the areas of focus for the respective management company and AIFM activities.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The company moanitors its capital on an ongoing basis. The company s objective is to be prudently capitalized in
terms of the amount and composition of its equity base compared to the compamy’s risk exposres, The
appropriate level and composition of its equity capital 5 detenmined by multiple factors ncluding the comparmy s
current and future regulatory capilal requirements, the results of the company’s capital planning and other factors
such as the business enviromment in the financial markets.

During 2023, the comgainy was in compliance with the capital requirements get by the Central Bank of Ireland.

The directors consider that the most important components of the comgany ‘s financial risk are market risk, credit
risk and Liquidity nisk. The compary, as part of a global group, adheres to global risk management policies and
procedures,

a. Market Risk

Market risk 15 the risk of loss in the value of the company’s financial assets and financial liabilities due to changes
in market conditions, Rizsks are monitoced and controlled through strong fimmwide oversight and independent
control and support functions across the company™s business. Relevant market risks for the company are interest
rate risk and currency risk.

Interest rate risk results from exposures to changes in level, slope and curvatore of vield curves, volatilities of
interest rates and credit spreads,

Currency nsk results from changes in spod prices, forward prices and volatilities in currency rales.

The compary manages its interest rate and currency rigk as part of G5 Group's risk management policy, by
establishing econcmic hedges as appropriate to the circumstances of the company.

b, Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential for loss due to the defaull or deterioration i the credit quabity of a counterparty.
Credit risk & managed by reviewing the credit quality of counterparties and reviewing, if applicable, the
underly mg collateral agamst which the assets are secured. The company s eredit exposunes are:

Cash at bank and in hand — Cash at bank and in hand include both interest-bearing and non-mterest-bearmg
deposis. To mitigate the rigk of loss, the company places substantially all of its deposits with highly-rated banks,

Debtors — The compay 12 exposed to credit sk from its amounts due from custormers and amounts due from
group indertakings. Fees from investment fimds are settled from the AUM of the find, for which the credit risk
i# considered minimal.

e, Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company does not have sufficient cash or collateral to make payments to its
counterparties as they fall due The company manages its liguidity rsk in accordance with G8 Group's
comprehensive and conservative set of liguidity and fundmg policies to address both company specific and
broader industry or market liquadity eventz.

=)=
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

16.

17

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2023

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
a. Financial assets and financlal liabilities by category
All financial assets are categonzed as financial assets measured at amortized cost in the current and prier periods.

All financial liabilities are categorized as finamcial liabilities measured at amortized cost m the current and prior
periods.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Ir.  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at falr valoe
The company has USE266.3 million (31 December 2022: USS231. 2Zmillion) of current financial assets and
USE233. 2 million (31 Decemnber 2021 USS200.9 million) of current financial liabilities, all of which are not
mieasured at fair value. Given the short-term nature of these instnumens, the carrying amounts of the fimancial
assets and fimancial lhabilities on the balance sheet are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

¢, Maturity of financial liabilitles

All finamcial labilities are due withizn one month of the balance sheet date.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2024,
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Goldman Sachs Asset Management International
(
2023 12 100 156 9,000
(
¢)
(
2024 9,000
(
1996 23
2002 18
29 2007 30
2008 28
€)) The Bank of New York
Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch
(
2022 12
1,754,386,325.53 2,949
(
4 CACEIS Investor Services
Ireland Limited
(
2024 1,200 20 1,744
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165/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

®

2024 26 71.96

©®

2024 781

(10)

2024 836 1,600

1D

2024 700

(12)

2023 12 15 19,495

(13

2024 30

(14)

2024 11,945

166/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(15)

2024 13,195

(16)

2024 17,709

an

2023 247,369

(18)

2024 2,799

(19) UBS SuMi TRUST

(
2024 5,165
(
(20)
(
2024 30

167/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y)

90

1940

@

(¢

®

168/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4)

®)

(6 Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC

Q)

®

€)

(10)

(1D

(12)

(13)

169/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(14)

(15)

(16)

@an

(18)

(19) UBS SuMi TRUST

(20)

170/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1989
1972
1972
1990
1989 1989 1989
1989
(A 1989
1893 1972
2011
2009 13 2009
65 2010 2010 43 2010 2010 44
1989 1990
2013 48
(€H) 2019
2011 61 2013
21 2013 16 2013
2023 15 2023 606
2015 29 2015 760
(1

(a

171/230



I

(¢

G
(a

¢

(B

(a
(b

(c

(C
@
(¢
G
4

¢

G
0o @
Q@

G

1990

2005

1994

2014
2015

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020

2020
24
2020

Unit Trusts
Common Contractual Funds
Investment Limited Partnership
Investment Companies

1997

172/230



4

(A

a

Q@

@3

(a

¢

(c

4

1.1

1.2

1.3

EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )

173/230

Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

e e e
~N o g b

.10

10
1.1
10
144
10
40
2.3 10
25
80
2.3 10
35
2.4 2.5 2.3
40
20
1988
10
2.3 2.7 2.8
20
2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9

35

174/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2.11 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.7 2.8 2.9
20

2.12

100

30

30
10

20
4.2 4.1 35

( 10

175/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

( 10
) ) )

53 5.1 5.2

2.3 2.11
3.1 3.2 5.1 5.2 5.4 5.5 5.6
5.5 5.6

5.5 2.3 2.12
3.2 3.3 4.1 4.2

o1 o1 o1

.10

176/230



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1988

177/230



20
6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )

178/230

(

Ooooooooooooooooooad

6.1 ()



G

(a
(b

(c
«

(a

(c

«
(e

6.10

125,000

125,000

250,000,000
0.02

EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

6.8

50
10,000,000

179/230

250,000,000

25



(6

(a

o

(c

(d

(e

(f

(9

(h

(a

(b)(

EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )

180/230

Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(
(
(
(a
) ( 2006 48
( 2006 49 20 (O
2004 39 2004 39
@
2006
49
(
(aa
(bb
(cc 2011 21
(
¢
(a

¢

181/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(B
1994 2020

(

2014

300,000

2014

(a

182/230



(b
(c
(d
(e

(f

(9

(h
@i

(k
a

A@®C )

(

EDINETOOOO

o o =725 )

)

183/230

)

100

Ooooooooooooooooooad

(D



(A

(a

2014

(b

(a
(b
(c
(d

(e
(f
€
(h
(i

(k
¢
(m

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

AG@ @
(a
(b
(c
24 (d

Q)

©C)

184/230



(a

(b

(c

¢

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(aa (bb

185/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(a
(b 500,000

2014

2014

(A

¢

(C

(A
1997 739

2000

186/230



(B

25

I

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2000

(a 25

41

12.5

187/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 30
24
2023 29 25

188/230



10.00

10

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1996 25

1996 31

0.01

0.01 10.00

30,000,000

189/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 30

0.20

0.30

0.70

0.70
0.70

0.70

0.70

190/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.30

2023 12 31

191/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

90

10

192/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

99.5

0.5 11

1.7

193/230



T o O T D

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

397

60 weighted average maturity 120
weighted average life

194/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Q@

Q@

G

4

10
30
190 17.5
30
10
15
10
15
10 (@) ©
20
10
(a (0 (c (@

10

195/230



10

11

@

(

®

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

100

)2015/61 13

)

196/230



12

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

( 12

€Y

197/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

198/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

www.adviserinfo.sec.gov

199/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

200/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

201/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

202/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

203/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

204/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

205/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

204A-1

206/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

207/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

208/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

209/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

210/230



11

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

211/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

212/230



(M

EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

213/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

214/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11 MiFID 11

215/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

216/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MiFID MiFID

MiFID
MiFID 11

MiFID 11 MiFID 11

217/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 31

102

2011

2023 12 31

2023 12 31

218/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12

219/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(guarantee)

https://www. iaasa. ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8F-a98202dc9c3a/

Description_of_auditors_responsibilities_for_audit._pdf.

2011

2024 25

220/230



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditors " report to the unitholders of Goldman Sachs US$ Fund a
Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs US$ Fund a Sub-Fund of Goldman Sachs Unit Trust (Ireland)*s financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the Trust”s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 December 2023 and of
its results for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland (accounting
standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish law); and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the European Communities (Undertakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) .

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, which
comprise:

the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2023;
the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units for the year
then ended;

the Schedule of Investments as at 31 December 2023; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the accounting policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“1SAs (Ireland)”) and

applicable law.

Our responsibilities under I1SAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Ireland, which includes 1AASA"s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities inaccordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust"s ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the manager"s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the
Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
other than the financial statements and our auditors” report thereon. The manager is responsible for the other
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any formof
assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to
conclude whether there is amaterial misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these
responsibilities.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the manager for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager"s Responsibilities set out on page 3 and 4, the manager is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework giving a
true and fair view.

The manager is also responsible for such internal control as the manager determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Trust"s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the manager intends to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors"” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with I1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly
using data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing,
rather than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their
size or risk characteristics. Inother cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about
the population fromwhich the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
1AASA website at: https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-

298202dc9c3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors® report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders as a body in accordance with
the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011
(as amended) and for no other purpose. We do not, ingiving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin

25 April 2024
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guarantee

https://www. 1aasa. ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description_of auditors_responsibilities_for_audit.pdf

2014 391
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Independent auditors " report to the members of Goldman Sachs Asset
Management Fund Services Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs Asset Management Fund Services Limited"s financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the company”s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 December
2023 and of its profit for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with General ly Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting
Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” and Irish law); and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Report of Directors and Audited Financial
Statements, which comprise:

the Balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;
the Profit and loss account for the year then ended;
the Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“I1SAs (Ireland)”)
and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors® responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Ireland, which includes 1AASA"s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities inaccordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company®s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as
to the company®s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Report of Directors and Audited Financial
Statements other than the financial statements and our auditors” report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Ifwe identify an apparent
material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is
a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Directors” Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the Companies Act 2014
have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, 1SAs (Ireland) and
the Companies Act 2014 require us to also report certain opinions and matters as described below:

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Directors”
Report for the year ended 31 December 2023 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Based on our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors” Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors” responsibilities set out on page 5, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company®s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using
data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather
than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or
risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the
population from which the sample is selected.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 1AASA
website at: https://ww. iaasa.ie/getmedia/h2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for audit.pdf

This description forms part of our auditors” report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s members as a body in accordance
with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial statements
to be readily and properly audited.

The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Other exception reporting
Directors " remuneration and transactions

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, inour opinion, the disclosures of directors”
remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of that Act have not been made. We have no
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Jonathan 0*Connel |

for and on behal f of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

27 March 2024
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